IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

WILFRID METELLUS,	
Petitioner,	DCA CASE No.s: 5D01-1044,
	5D01-1249, 5D01-1250, 5D01-1251
VS.	5D01-1253, 5D01-1254
	(Consolidated: 5D01-1044)
STATE OF FLORIDA,	
,	S. CT. CASE NO.: 5D02-1494
Respondent.	

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, FIFTH DISTRICT AND THE NINTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA

PETITIONER'S INITIAL BRIEF ON THE MERITS

JAMES B. GIBSON PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

MEGHAN ANN COLLINS ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER Florida Bar Number 0492868 112 Orange Avenue Daytona Beach, Florida 32114-4310 (386) 252-3367

ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The Petitioner was the Defendant and the Respondent was the Prosecution in the Ninth Judicial Circuit Court, in and for Orange County, Florida. In the Brief the Respondent will be called "the State" and the Defendant will be called "Petitioner."

The instant case is a consolidated appeal of six cases, CR99-43, CR99-699, CR99-736, CR99-1254, CR99-1907, CR98-14790. The record of CR 99-699 will serve as the record on appeal, as it is the most complete record. In the brief the following symbols will be used:

"R"- Volume two of the Record on Appeal, Case CR99-699,

"T" - Transcript of hearing on the motion to vacate and the transcript of the resentencing, Volume one of the Record on Appeal, Case CR99-699.

"S" - the Supplemental Record, Volume one.

- "R2" Volume two of the record on appeal for Case CR99-43.
- "R3" Volume two of the record on appeal for Case CR99-736.
- "R4" Volume two of the record on appeal for Case CR99-1254.
- "R5" Volume two of the record on appeal for Case CR99-1907.
- "R6" Volume two of the record on appeal for Case CR98-14790.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The instant case is a consolidated appeal of six cases, CR99-43, CR99-699, CR99-736, CR99-1254, CR99-1907, CR98-14790. The record of CR 99-699 served as the record on appeal.

A. The charges against Petitioner

Petitioner was charged by information, on December 9, 1998, with two counts, Case No. CR98-14790 (R6 98;Vol.2). Count one was carrying a concealed firearm, in violation of Section 790.01(2), Florida Statutes (1998) (R6 98;Vol.2). Count two was possession of 20 grams or less of cannabis, in violation of Section 893.13(6)(b), Florida Statutes (1998) (R6 98;Vol.2).

Petitioner was charged by information, on January 27, 1999, with one count of carrying a concealed firearm, in violation of Section 790.01(2), Florida Statutes (1999), Case No. CR99-43, (R2 101;Vol.2).

Petitioner was charged by information, on February 11, 1999, with three counts, Case No. CR99-699 (R 99-100; Vol.2). Count one was home invasion robbery (with a firearm), in violation of Sections 812.15(1), 812.135(2), 775.087(1) and 775.087(2), Florida Statutes (1999) (R 99; Vol.2). Count two was kidnaping with intent to commit a felony (with a firearm), in violation of Sections 787.01(1)(a)(2), 775. 087(1) and 775. 087(2), Florida Statutes (1999) (R 100;

Vol.2). Count three was burglary of a dwelling with an assault or a battery (with a firearm), in violation of Sections 810.02(2)(a), 775.087(1), and 775.087(2), Florida Statutes (1999) (R 100; Vol.2).

Petitioner was charged by information, on February 11, 1999, with seven counts, Case No. CR99-736 (R3 101-104;Vol.2). Count one was home invasion robbery (with a firearm), in violation of Sections 812.135(1), 812.135(2), 775.087(1), and 775.087(2), Florida Statutes (1999) (R3 101;Vol.2). Count two was burglary of a dwelling with an assault or a battery (with a firearm), in violation of Sections 810.02(2)(a), 775.087(1), and 775.087(2), Florida Statutes (1999) (R3 101;Vol.2). Counts three, four, and five were each a charge of aggravated assault with a firearm (with a mask), in violation of Sections 784.021(1)(a), 775.0845 and 775.087(2), Florida Statutes (1999) (R3 102-103; Vol.2). Counts six and seven were each a count of kidnaping with intent to commit a felony (with a firearm), in violation of Sections 787.01(1)(a)(2), 775.087(1), and 775.087(2), Florida Statutes (1999) (R3 103-104;Vol.2).

Petitioner was charged by information, on February 16, 1999 with two counts, Case No. CR99-1254 (R4 99-100;Vol.2). Count one was home invasion robbery (with a firearm), in violation of Sections 812.135(1), 812.135(2), 775.087(1), and 775.087(2), Florida Statutes (1999) (R4 99;Vol.2). Count two was

aggravated assault with a firearm, in violation of Sections 784.021(1)(a) and 775.087(2), Florida Statutes (1999) (R4 100; Vol.2).

Petitioner was charged by information, on March 8, 1999, with four counts, Case No. CR99-1907 (R5 109-111;Vol.2). Count one was armed burglary of a dwelling with a firearm, in violation of Sections 810.01(2)(b) and 775.087(2) (R5 109;Vol.2). Count two and three were each a charge of aggravated assault with a firearm, in violation of Sections 784.021(1)(a) and 775.087(2), Florida Statutes (1999) (R5 110;Vol.2). Count four was possession of a firearm in commission of a felony, in violation of Section 790.07(2) (R5 111;Vol.2).

B. Petitioner's plea agreement and sentencing

On November 3, 1999, before the Honorable Stan Strickland, circuit judge, Petitioner entered into a plea agreement with the State on five of his six cases (R 34-53,136-137;Vol.2) (R2 127-128;Vol.2) (R2 127-128;Vol.2) (R3 136-137;Vol.2) (R4 134-135;Vol.2) (R5 140-141;Vol.2). Case No. CR98-14790 was omitted accidentally; on February 24, 2000 it was added to the plea agreement under the same plea conditions as with the other five cases (R 78-81;Vol.2) (R6 131-132;Vol.2). The plea agreement, in its entirety, required Petitioner to plead guilty to count one of each information, the sentences were to run concurrently, and the prison sentence would be capped at thirty years (R 35-37;Vol.2). The State agreed

to nolle prosequi the remaining counts (R 35-37;Vol.2). The State further required that Petitioner testify truthfully at the future trials of his codefendants (R 35-37;Vol.2).

Petitioner was sentenced on February 24, 2000 and he was adjudicated guilty on all counts (R 92-94;Vol.2)(R2 131-132;Vol.2) (R3 143-144;Vol.2) (R4 141-142;Vol.2) (R5 144-145;Vol.2) (R6 133-134;Vol.2). Petitioner was sentenced to four sentences of fourteen years in Department of Corrections, for case numbers CR99-699, CR99-1254, CR99-1907, CR99-736, and two sentences of five years in the Department of Corrections, for case numbers CR99-43 and CR98-14790 (R 92-94;Vol.2) (R2 136-137;Vol.2) (R3 145-146;Vol.2) (R4 146-147;Vol.2) (R5 149-150;Vol.2) (R6 138-139;Vol.2). The Court ordered that all sentences were to be served concurrently (R 94;Vol.2).

C. The trial of Tony Elozar and the resentencing of Petitioner

On August 17, 2000, Petitioner was called to the stand to testify at the trial of Tony Elozar, his former co-defendant (R 157-159;Vol.1). Petitioner's testimony on the stand was inconsistent with his prior sworn statements and he stated that his prior statements to police detectives about the case were lies (R 157-159;Vol.1).

On October 30, 2000, the State filed a motion to vacate sentence arguing that Petitioner had perpetrated a fraud upon the court (R 157-159;Vol.2).

On March 8, 2001 a hearing was held before Judge Strickland on the State's motion to vacate (T 1-33;Vol.1). The Court granted the State's motion and vacated Petitioner's 14 year sentence (T 31;Vol.1,R164;Vol.2). The Court resentenced Petitioner to four sentences of 29 years in the Department of Corrections, case numbers CR99-699, CR99-1254, CR99-1907, CR99-736. (T 28-30;Vol.1, R 161-162,164;Vol.2) (R4 154-155;Vol.2) (R5 162-163;Vol.2) (R3 156-157;Vol.2). The Court also sentenced Petitioners to a three year minimum mandatory sentence in each of these cases (T 31;Vol.1). The Court resentenced Petitioner to the same five year sentences in the Department of Corrections on the remaining two cases and ordered all sentences to be served concurrently (T 30,31;Vol.1) (R2 141-142;Vol.2) (R6 148-149;Vol.2).

D. Petitioner's appeal to the Fifth District Court of Appeal of the State of Florida

Petitioner filed six timely notices of appeal, one for each case, April 3, 2001 (R 166; Vol.2) (R2 149; Vol.2) (R3 161; Vol.2) (R4 159; Vol.2) (R5 166; Vol.2) (R6 153; Vol.2). The Office of Public Defender was appointed to represent Petitioner (R 171; Vol.2) (R2 154; Vol.2) (R3 166; Vol.2) (R4 162; Vol.2) (R5 171; Vol.2).

On June 12, 2001, the Fifth District Court of Appeal ordered that the six cases be consolidated for further proceedings in that court.

On July 3, 2001, Petitioner filed a motion to correct sentencing error, under

Rule 3.800(b)(2) (S 156-160;Vol.1). On September 10, 2001, the circuit court held a hearing on the 3.800(b)(2) motion and reserved ruling on the motion (S 161;Vol.1). The Court failed to rule on the motion before sixty days had elapsed from the date of filing, so the motion to correct sentencing was deemed denied.

Kimbrough v. State, 766 So. 2d 1255 (Fla. 5th DCA 2000).

On May 31, 2002, the Fifth District Court of Appeal affirmed the trial court's vacating of Petitioner's sentence and resentencing of Petitioner to a longer sentence. Metellus v. State, 817 So. 2d 1009 (Fla. 5th DCA 2002). The Fifth District Court of Appeal also certified conflict with the decisions of the Second District Court of Appeal in Joslin v. State, 27 Fla. L. Weekly D686 (Fla. 2d DCA March 22, 2002) and Robie v. State, 807 So. 2d 781 (Fla. 2d DCA 2002). The Second District Court of Appeal held in Joslin and Robie that under Rule 3.170(g)(2)(A) the trial court did not have jurisdiction to increase a defendant's sentence when the State failed to move to vacate defendant's sentence within 60 days after defendant's noncompliance.

Petitioner filed a notice to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court on July 3, 2002. This Court issued an order, dated July 11, 2002, postponing decision on jurisdiction in this case and set a briefing schedule.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

A. The Plea Agreement

On November 3, 1999, Petitioner entered into a plea agreement before the Honorable Stan Strickland, circuit judge. (R 34-53;Vol.2). Among the terms of the plea agreement was a requirement that Petitioner cooperate with the State by testifying truthfully against his co-defendants (R 35-37;Vol.2). During the plea hearing the State questioned Petitioner about a statement he had previously made to Detective Duncan and had Petitioner confirm that the statement was the truth (R 43-49;Vol.2). However, the State never put on the record, as part of the plea agreement, a requirement that Petitioner testify in accordance with his previous testimony, nor did any provision of the plea agreement purport to lengthen the time given the State to move to vacate for noncompliance (R 34-53;Vol.2).

The plea agreement was intended to cover all six cases¹, however due to an oversight, Case No. CR98-14790 was omitted; it was later added to the agreement with the same conditions as the other five cases (R 78;Vol.2). In the beginning of the plea hearing, defense counsel placed the terms of the plea agreement on the record (R 35-37;Vol.2). The plea agreement, in its entirety, required Petitioner to plead guilty to count one of each of the six informations (R 35-37;Vol.2). In

¹ CR99-43, CR99-699C, CR99-736A, CR99-1254B, CR99-1907C, CR98-14790

exchange, the State agreed to nolle prosequi the remaining counts of each information and to recommend that all Petitioner's sentences were to run concurrently (R 35-37;Vol.2). The Court agreed that Petitioner's exposure to prison would be capped at 30 years (R 36;Vol.2). Additionally, the State required that Petitioner testify truthfully against his co-defendants in exchange for a reduced sentence (R 35-37;Vol.2).

Defense counsel repeatedly stated, for the record, the additional requirement of testifying against the co-defendants (R 35-37;Vol.2). Each time the requirement was only to testify and testify truthfully (R 35-37;Vol.2). Never was Petitioner required to testify in accordance with previous statements he had made (R 35-37;Vol.2). Not once did the State object to defense counsel's recitation of the plea agreement, nor did the State mention any additional requirements (R 34-53;Vol.2).

Defense counsel stated the requirement three times as he went through each case Petitioner was entering a plea on that day (R 36-37;Vol.2). Defense counsel said, "He'll also be required to testify truthfully against the co-defendant in this case, and that would be Mr. Ocer if there are any remaining trials after today and also [Elozar] trials, if Mr. Elozar proceeds forward." (R 36;Vol.2). Defense counsel also stated, "He'll be, again, set off for sentencing, and he will be required to testify truthfully against any co-defendants who proceed to trial." (R 37;Vol.2).

Finally, Defense counsel said, "The State will be nol prossing counts two, three and four, ordering PSI, and he will testify truthfully against any co-defendant who proceeds to trial" (R 37; Vol.2).

The Court then swore Petitioner in and began the plea colloquy (R 38; Vol.2). The State questioned Petitioner, after giving a factual basis for each case and before the colloquy was completed and the Court accepted the plea (R 40-44; Vol.2). The State asked Petitioner, "Mr. Metellus it is my understanding that you are willing to testify truthfully in any future trial of Mr. Ocer or Mr. Elozar, is that correct?"(R 44; Vol.2). Petitioner responded, "Yes." (R 44; Vol.2). The State then questioned Petitioner about a statement he had made to Detective Parks Duncan (R 44-49; Vol.2). The State handed Petitioner a copy of a transcript of the statement and ascertained that he did remember giving the statement (R 44; Vol.2). The State then asked, "Is everything that you told Detective Parks Duncan in this transcript, is that the truth?" (R 45; Vol.2). Petitioner responded, "Yes." (R 45; Vol.2). The State then questioned Petitioner about the specifics of the home invasion robbery that occurred on January 10, 1999 (R 46-47; Vol.2). Petitioner admitted that he had committed the offense, with Tony Elozar, Jonel Ocer and Mr. Coulou, and that all four men were armed with guns (R 47; Vol.2). The State then questioned Petitioner about the specifics of a robbery that occurred on January 13,

1999 (R 47-49;Vol.2). Petitioner agreed that he had committed the offense, with Tony Elozar, Jonel Ocer, and an unnamed individual (R 48-49;Vol.2). The State then showed Petitioner a picture of a man, marked state's exhibit 14 in case CR99-1254, and asked him if that was a picture of Tony Elozar (R 49;Vol.2). Petitioner said, "Yes." (R 49;Vol.2). The State then asked, "And is that the same Tony that participated in the robberies with you?" (R 49;Vol.2). Petitioner responded, "Yes, Ma'am." (R 49;Vol.2). The State then asked, "Is everything that you just told me here in court today, is that the truth?" (R 49;Vol.2). Petitioner responded, "Yes, Ma'am." (R 49;Vol.2).

The Court then concluded the colloquy, accepted Petitioner's plea of guilty, and set a date for sentencing (R 49-50; Vol.2).

B. Petitioner's original sentencing

On February 24, 2000, Petitioner was sentenced before Judge Strickland (R54-95;Vol.2). Apparently at the time of Petitioner's sentencing, Tony Elozar was not in custody, therefore Petitioner had yet to testify at the trial of this co-defendant (R 90;Vol.2). The Court sentenced Petitioner to 14 years in the Department of Corrections and stated that the sentence was based in part upon Petitioner's representation that he would testify against his co-defendant if Tony Elozar ever went to trial (R 92;Vol.2). Prior to sentencing, the State again had Petitioner

confirm that his prior statements about Tony Elozar's involvement in the home invasions were truthful (R54-95;Vol.2). But once again the State failed to require as part of the plea agreement that Petitioner testify in accordance with those statements (R 54-95;Vol.2).

Petitioner took the stand and told the Court that he was sorry for his actions (R 73-75; Vol.2). The State then questioned Petitioner about his earlier statements (R 75-77; Vol.2). The State asked Petitioner if everything he had said at the earlier plea hearing was still true (R 75-76; Vol.2). Petitioner answered, "Yes, Ma'am." (R 76; Vol.2). The State then asked, "Is everything that you told the detectives in reference to these home invasions, are they all - - was that all true?" (R 76; Vol.2). Petitioner again answered, "Yes, Ma'am." (R 76; Vol.2). The State then had Petitioner confirm that the men who committed the offenses with him were Tony Elozar and Jonel Ocer (R 76; Vol.2). The State went over the agreement that Petitioner made to testify against his co-defendants (R 76; Vol.2). The State said, "And as part of your sentence we have taken into consideration the fact that you have been cooperative and you have represented that you will be cooperative, should you be called at any trial against either of those individuals. Is that still your position?" (R 76; Vol.2). Petitioner said, "Um, My deal was that you was gonna make me testify on Tony Elozar." (R 76; Vol.2). The State replied, "If you were

called to testify against anyone would you testify truthfully?" (R 76-77;Vol.2). Petitioner answered, "Yes, Ma'am" (R 77;Vol.2). Later on in her questioning, the State again asked, "...there may be a day where you may be brought back to testify. And is it your testimony here today that you will testify truthfully?" (R 77;Vol.2). Petitioner answered, "Yes Ma'am." (R 77;Vol.2).

Before sentencing Petitioner, the Court remedied the matter of the case that had been accidentally omitted from the plea hearing, even though it was intended to be part of the plea agreement (R 78; Vol.2).

The Court then addressed the issue of Petitioner's sentence. The State said they expected him to be sentenced between 16 and 30 years in the Department of Corrections, but that the State was not recommending a sentence in the high end of that range (R 90;Vol.2). The State conceded that once Petitioner was sentenced, the Court would not be able to alter Petitioner's sentence (R 90;Vol. 2). The State said, "It's obviously a D.O.C. sentence, it's just matter of how much the Court chooses to give him. *It can't be taken away from him.* Mr. Elozar's running off - I have to assume that Mr. Metellus would have testified truthfully or will testify truthfully in the future." (R 90;Vol.2) (emphasis added). Apparently Mr. Elozar had escaped from custody, preventing the State from proceeding to trial on him before sentencing Petitioner (R 90;Vol.2).

In cases CR99-699, CR99-1254, CR99-1907, CR99-736, the Court sentenced Petitioner to 14 years in the Department of Corrections on each case (R 92-93;Vol.2). In case CR99-43 and case CR98-14790 the Court sentenced Petitioner to five years in the Department of Corrections (R 94;Vol.2). The Court ordered that all sentences were to be served concurrently (R 94;Vol.2).

C. The Trial of Tony Elozar

On August 17, 2000, Petitioner was called to testify at the trial of Tony Elozar, his former co-defendant (R 157-159;Vol.2). Petitioner was accidentally placed in the same holding cell as Mr. Elozar (T 16-17;Vol.1). Mr. Elozar threatened Petitioner (T 17-18;Vol.1). Moments before he was to testify, Petitioner asked the State for a sentence reduction saying, "I know you need me. I want 4 instead of 14." (R 158;Vol.2). Petitioner's testimony on the stand was inconsistent with his prior sworn statements and he stated that his prior statements to police detectives about the case were lies (R 157-159;Vol.1).

At the motion to vacate hearing, Judge Strickland reviewed the testimony of Petitioner at the trial (T 25-26;Vol.1). The Court stated that on the stand Petitioner said that he had been mistaken, that Tony Elozar was not present at the home invasion (T25;Vol.1). Petitioner said that the only reason he said Tony Elozar was a participant in the crimes was because Petitioner thought he would never have to

face Tony Elozar again (T 25;Vol.1). Petitioner stated that he had lied in his previous statements (T 26;Vol.1).

D. The Motion to Vacate and Resentencing

On October 30, 2000, the State filed a Motion to Vacate (R 157-158; Vol.2). Citing Petitioner's failure to testify at trial in accordance with his previous statements, the State moved that the Court should "vacate the original sentence received by Wilfrid Metellus, who received the benefit of a bargain, but failed to comply with his terms." (R 158; Vol.2). The motion to vacate stated that "The State agreed to Nol prosse the remaining counts in each case based upon the Defendant's representation that he would cooperate and testify truthfully against his co-defendants, specifically Tony Elozar." (R 157; Vol.2). Nowhere in the motion does it state that Petitioner had been required by his plea agreement to testify in accordance with his prior testimony (R 157-158; Vol.2). Instead, the State repeats several times that it relied upon Petitioner to testify truthfully (R 157-158; Vol.2). Furthermore, the motion to vacate does not cite any procedural rule or case law which would permit the Court to vacate Petitioner's sentence (R 157-158; Vol.2).

On March 8, 2001 a hearing was held on the State's motion to vacate sentencing, before Judge Strickland (T 1-33;Vol.1). The State contended that the Court could vacate Petitioner's sentence because he had, in the State's view,

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