IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

WILFRID METELLUS,

Petitioner,

v.

Case No. SC02-1494

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON THE MERITS

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

ANGELA D. McCRAVY Assistant Attorney General

Florida Bar No. 983391 444 Seabreeze Blvd., Suite 500 Daytona Beach, Florida 32118-

(386)238-4990 Fax (386)238-4997

KELLIE A. NIELAN Assistant Attorney GeneralFlorida Bar No. 618550

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

3951

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

On August 17, 2000, Petitioner was called to the stand to

When Petitioner was put on the stand he initially stated, "I just told you I don't want to answer any more questions; [] I already made up my mind I was not going to answer any questions." (5D01-1253 R1: 25, 138) When ordered by the court to answer the questions and confronted with his confession

truth. (5D01-1253 R2: 138)

statement to Detective Duncan, Petitioner stated, "I made a mistake, Tony [Elozar] wasn't there[.]" (5D01-1253 R1: 25, R2: 138) Petitioner claimed that he had only implicated Elozar in his confession statement "because I thought I was never going to face him again." (5D01-1253 R1: 25) "I lied because they made a lot of promises, and I ain't never seen the promises they [] made to me." (5D01-1253 R1: 25)

Because Petitioner refused to testify truthfully against Elozar in accordance with the prior statements and assurances he had previously sworn to be the "truth", the State was unable to proceed against Elozar and the case was dismissed. (5D01-1253 R1: 12-13, 23)

On October 30, 2000, the State filed a motion to vacate Petitioner's sentence. (5D01-1253 R2: 137-39) The motion stated that at the time the court had imposed Petitioner's sentence, the court as well as the State believed that Petitioner was proffering the "truth" and that he would assist in the prosecution of Elozar by testifying "truthfully".

On March 8, 2001, a hearing was held on the State's motion to vacate sentence. (5D01-1253 R1: 2) The prosecutor pointed out that during the plea hearing when she had given the factual basis for all of Petitioner's crimes, she had included the fact that Ocer and Elozar had done the crimes

with him. (5D01-1253 R1: 4) The prosecutor continued:

Also prior to the plea being accepted the State did inquire specifically of the defendant to make sure that he did in fact have something to assist in the State's prosecution of Mr. Elozar. I wanted to elicit what he meant by truthful testimony. There's a questioning and answering that went back and forth between [Petitioner] and I. I had presented [Petitioner] with a copy of the statement he gave to Detective Parks Duncan that was presented to him during his plea in open court. He confirmed on the record that everything contained in the statement was the truth. [Emphasis added]. (5D01-1253 R1: 4-5)

The prosecutor argued that Petitioner had, at the very least, committed a fraud on the court during his plea hearing. (5D01-1253 R1: 7) She asked for a sentence of 30 years incarceration. (5D01-1253 R1: 8)

Defense counsel stated clearly that Petitioner was not seeking to vacate his plea in this case. (5D01-1253 R1: 8)

Defense counsel also made the following statement:

[DEFENSE COUNSEL]: It's clear that [Petitioner] did not live up to one of the most important parts of the agreement, which was to testify against Mr. Elozar. (5D01-1253 R1: 9)

Defense counsel pointed out that when Petitioner was brought to the courthouse from the jail to testify against Elozar, the two men had been inadvertently placed in the same holding cell. (5D01-1253 R1: 10) Defense counsel claimed that Elozar had made threats to Petitioner and his family at that time. (5D01-1253 R1: 10) But defense counsel had to admit:

[DEFENSE COUNSEL]: [Petitioner] did what he

did, and therefore he's going to have to pay the consequences for that. (5D01-1253 R1: 11)

Petitioner testified at the hearing on the motion to vacate that prior to the time he was taken to court to testify against Elozar, he had called his sister and been told that she had received a call telling her that if Petitioner testified against Elozar, "they would come and do stuff to my family." (5D01-1253 R1: 16) He claimed that he had not taken the alleged threat seriously until he was brought to court on August 17, 2000 when he was placed in the same holding cell with Elozar. (5D01-1253 R1: 17) According to Petitioner, Elozar had asked Petitioner if he was going to testify against Elozar. Petitioner had responded, "yeah, based with the plea." (5D01-1253 R1: 17) Elozar had responded, "I don't think that would be a good idea because something will happen if you [sic] do get found guilty." (5D01-1253 R1: 17) Petitioner claimed that at that point he took the threat seriously. (5D01-1253 R1: 17)

Petitioner claimed that he had then told the prosecutor that he did not think it was a good idea if he testified against Elozar, but the prosecutor had told him he had no choice. Petitioner claimed that he had not had a chance to explain to her that Elozar had threatened him. (5D01-1253 R1: 19) Petitioner never claimed at this hearing that he had testified truthfully at trial. Rather, his entire testimony

addressed why he had failed to testify in accordance with his previous statements, which he had already previously characterized as truthful.

In response, the prosecutor advised the court that "[d]espite the court order to keep them apart, all efforts I made to keep them apart in the transportation, there was contact [between Petitioner and Elozar] during the lunch hour" on the second day of trial. (5D01-1253 R1: 21) The prosecutor's statement continued:

As soon as we learned, I went down to [Petitioner]. [] And I had a conversation with [Petitioner][.] [] I spoke with [Petitioner], asked him was there any problem in the contact he had with Mr. Elozar he needed to tell me Nothing was brought to my attention at that time. [] This is the first I've heard of any allegations of his [] family getting threats. [] Up until the last, the visit with him, he told me he was going to testify, as he The first time that always had, to the truth. it was indicated to me he was going to testify differently was literally thirty 30 seconds before he got on the stand when he was up here in the holding cell.

* * *

[Petitioner] has basically come up with a version that that's why he didn't testify truthfully. [Emphasis added]. (5D01-1253 R1: 21-22)

The court stated that the fact that Petitioner had agreed to testify against Elozar had been one of the lynchpins behind the court's decision to impose a lesser sentence. (5D01-1253 R1: 24) The court also put on the record that as soon as the

prosecutor had learned that Petitioner and Elozar had briefly been in the same holding cell together, the prosecutor had notified the court. (5D01-1253 R1: 24) He further pointed out that since the Elozar jury had not been sworn at the time of the contact between Elozar and Petitioner in the holding cell, a continuance could have been called if Petitioner had truly been threatened and had advised the prosecutor of such. (5D01-1253 R1: 25)

The court reviewed the statements Petitioner had made on the stand at the Elozar trial. (5D01-1253 R1: 25-26) The court then stated, "your sentence was predicated upon your telling the truth. [] We counted on you to tell the truth and hold up your end of the bargain." (5D01-1253 R1: 26) Even so, the court declined to imposed the 30-year maximum sentence capped under the plea agreement because "there may have been some coercion during the brief period you were [in the holding cell with Elozar]." But "to come back and say you would do it but for that just isn't going to wash." (5D01-1253 R1: 28)

The court vacated Petitioner's previously imposed 14-year sentences. (5D01-1253 R1: 26-27) The court then resentenced Petitioner on the home invasion and armed burglary of a dwelling counts to 29 years incarceration. These sentences also carried a three-year minimum-mandatory term. On the two carrying a concealed firearm counts, the court allowed the

five-year sentences to stand. All sentences were ordered to run concurrently. (5D01-1253 R1: 27-31)

Significantly, defense counsel made no objection to the sentence imposed.

Long after the notice of appeal had been filed, on July 10, 2001 Petitioner filed a motion to correct sentencing error pursuant to Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.800 (b) (2). (5D01-1044 SV: 156-57) The motion asserted that when a plea agreement only requires a defendant to testify truthfully, the agreement is not violated by the defendant's failure to testify in accordance with his prior testimony. The motion also argued alternatively that the State's motion to vacate plea had been untimely filed pursuant to Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.170 (g).

A hearing on the motion was held on September 10, 2001. The trial court reserved ruling. (5D01-1044 SV: 161)

Petitioner has failed to include a transcript of this hearing in the appellate record.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Issue I: The Fifth District Court of Appeal properly
affirmed the vacation of Petitioner's sentence and the
imposition of a new sentence, by holding that Fla. R. Crim. P.
3.170(g)(2)

(A) is not jurisdictional in nature. The cases upon which Petitioner relies are factually distinguishable, thus depriving this Court of jurisdiction to consider this appeal.

Issue II: The trial court's vacation of Petitioner's sentence and resentencing him to a longer term did not violate double jeopardy. Double jeopardy is no bar to reopening a case after sentencing where a condition of the plea is not performed by a defendant. And Petitioner did indeed violate the terms of his plea agreement.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE I

THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL PROPERLY AFFIRMED THE VACATION OF PETITIONER'S SENTENCE AND THE IMPOSITION OF A NEW SENTENCE BY HOLDING THAT FLA. R. CRIM. P. 3.170 (g)(2)(A) IS NOT JURISDICTIONAL IN NATURE. (Restated).

A. The failure to make a contemporaneous objection:

Petitioner alleges that the trial court erred in resentencing him to a longer term of incarceration because the State failed to file its motion to vacate sentence within 60 days of Petitioner's non-compliance. However, defense counsel never objected to Petitioner's new sentence on that ground or any other ground during the sentencing hearing.

Petitioner has waived appellate review of this issue.

§90.104(1)(a), Fla. Stat. (2000) requires a timely objection in order to preserve a point for appeal. See Holley v. State, 523 So. 2d 688 (Fla. 1st DCA 1988). Objections which are not timely made are waived. See Roundtree v. State, 362 So. 2d 1347 (Fla. 1978), cert. denied, 350 So. 2d 1293 (Fla. 3d DCA 1978).

Petitioner's filing of a Rule 3.800 (b) motion prior to filing his initial brief on direct appeal was not a contemporaneous objection, and therefore did not preserve this issue for review.

B. Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.170(g)(2)(A) is not jurisdictional:

Petitioner claims on page 21 of his brief that a court's

lack of jurisdiction is fundamental error which may be raised for the first time on appeal. However, the Fifth District Court of Appeal's holding below that the rule is not jurisdictional is the correct interpretation of this Court's intent.

Rule 3.170(g)(2)(A) provides:

- (2) Unless otherwise stated at the time the plea is entered:
- (A) The state may move to vacate a plea and sentence within 60 days of the defendant's non-compliance with the specific terms of a plea agreement. [Emphasis added].

The highlighted provision of the rule clearly indicates that the 60-day time limit may be changed by consent of the parties and incorporated into the terms of a plea agreement.

Petitioner disputes this construction of the plain language of the rule, arguing on page 23 of his brief:

If under Rule 3.170(g)(2)(A), the parties choose to modify the time limit to vacate the plea and sentence, then the parties are merely exercising an option conferred on them by this Honorable Court. Jurisdiction is not created by the agreement of the parties, their agreement would be meaningless, but for the jurisdiction created in the rule. It is this Honorable Court, via this rule, that confers jurisdiction. Therefore, despite the provision that allows for the modification of the time limit, Rule 3.170(g)(2)(A) is jurisdictional.

Respectfully, this argument makes no logical sense. If Petitioner's reasoning were to control, then every time limit contained in every rule of procedure of this Court would be

jurisdictional in nature, simply because it is contained within a rule of this Honorable Court. Obviously such is not the case.

As the Fifth District reasoned in its decision below, the provision of the rule which allows modification of the 60-day time limit is significant, because courts have consistently held that jurisdiction, where it does not otherwise exist, may not be conferred on the court by agreement or consent of the parties. Hence, if the rule at issue is indeed jurisdictional, the parties would not be able to agree on a longer period, and the provision of the rule would be meaningless. "In construing legislation, courts should not assume that the legislature acted pointlessly." Sharer v.

Hotel Corp. of America, 144 So. 2d 813, 817 (Fla. 1962). The same maxim of statutory construction applies to the interpretation of rules of court. This Court does not include meaningless provisions in the rules of procedure it adopts.

As the Fifth District explained in its decision, construing Rule 3.170 (g) to be non-jurisdictional is logically the correct interpretation:

[T]o conclude that rule 3.170(g)(2)(a) is jurisdictional may provide an incentive to defendants who enter conditional plea agreements to breach the conditions with which they do not want to comply, secure in the knowledge that if the state does not discover the breach and file the motion within the sixty-day time period, they will be forever relieved of their

obligation under the agreement. [] Furthermore, if the rule is held to be jurisdictional, the restrictive sixty-day time limit may act as a disincentive to the state to enter into conditional pleas in light of the fact that the rule specifically provides that the sixty-day period starts to run from the time the defendant commits the breach rather than from the time the state knew or should have known of the breach.

Metellus v. State, 817 So. 2d 1009 (Fla. 5th DCA 2002).

C. The distinguishment of possible conflicting authority:

The two cases upon which Petitioner relies are distinguishable. In Joslin v. State, 27 Fla. L. Weekly D686 (Fla. 2d DCA March 22, 2002) and Robie v. State, 807 So. 2d 781 (Fla. 2d DCA 2002), the defendants entered pleas and requested that they be furloughed for a brief period of time before their incarceration. The trial court told each defendant that if he failed to report to prison on time, he would be subject to a harsher sentence. Each defendant failed to comply with his report date and each was eventually taken into custody and resentenced by the trial court to a more severe prison sentence.

Significantly, in **Joslin** "the State took no action" whatsoever when the defendant failed to report as ordered.

And in **Robie**, "[n]o action was taken by the State until Robie was arrested three years later." The **Robie** opinion fails to

¹Petitioner's statement on page 24 of his brief that defendant Robie was resentenced by the Second District Court of Appeal is incorrect.

indicate what "action" the State took upon Robie's arrest.

Rule 3.170 (g)(2)(A) provides that "[u]nless otherwise stated at the time the plea is entered[, t]he state may move to vacate a plea and sentence within 60 days of the defendant's non-compliance with the specific terms of a plea agreement." [Emphasis added]. In other words, the rule requires the State to move to vacate the plea and sentence in order to trigger the trial court's authority to resentence the defendant. There is no indication in either Joslin or Robie that the State filed the required motion. In contrast, in the instant case the State properly filed a motion to vacate plea and sentence to obtain relief under the rule. Since Joslin and **Robie** are factually distinguishable, they do not expressly and directly conflict with the decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal on the same point of law. Respondent urges, therefore, that this Court is without jurisdiction to even entertain this appeal, and it should be dismissed. Robinson v. State, 770 So. 2d 1167 (Fla. 2000)(Supreme court lacked jurisdiction over conflict as to proper role of appellate courts in evaluating weight and sufficiency of newly discovered evidence, where District Courts of Appeal decisions involved factually distinguishable cases, and there was no conflict); Goins v. State, 672 So. 2d 30, 33 (Fla. 1996) ("Finally, there is no conflict jurisdiction here since

the cases discussed are factually distinguishable.")

ISSUE II

THE TRIAL COURT'S VACATION OF PETITIONER'S SENTENCE AND RESENTENCING HIM TO A LONGER TERM DID NOT VIOLATE DOUBLE JEOPARDY.

A. There was no double jeopardy violation:

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